
Planning Commissioners 
Sabrina Savo, Seat A 
Brad Archer, Seat B 
Gregg Marxmiller, Seat C 

                                                                                                                                                                                      
 
 

 
 

 
DILLINGHAM PLANNING COMMISSION 

David B. Carlson Council Chambers  
Dillingham City Hall, 141 Main Street, Dillingham, AK 99576  

 

REGULAR MEETING 5:30 P.M. DECEMBER 16, 2015 

 
Teleconference:  1-800-791-2345; participant code 19531 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 a.   Regular Planning Commission Meeting, May 13, 2015  ..................................... page 3 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
5. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
a.   Communications to the Planning Commission 
 
b.   Planners Report  ................................................................................................ page 9 
 
c.   Citizen’s Comments on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 a.   Replat of Lots 1 & 2 of Block 1 of Floatplane Subdivision  ................................. page 39 

 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 

  
 a.   Adopt Resolution 2015-14 Approving a Long Term Encroachment at City Dock Lift   
                Station to Adjust Height of Transformer and Vault  ............................................ page 21 
  
 b.   Adopt Resolution 2015-15 Approving a Long Term Encroachment to Bury   
              Communication Conductor in Order to Remove Harbor Spur Road Crossing  ... page 27 
  
 c.   Adopt Resolution 2015-16 Approving a Long Term Encroachment to Install a Street 
              Light at Lot 2B Block 18 White Subdivision  ....................................................... page 33 

 
 

William Corbett, Seat D 
Andy Anderson, Seat E 
Julie Baltar, Chair, Seat F 
Vacant, Seat G 
 

Page 1 of 52



d.   Adopt Resolution 2015-17 Recommending Replat of Lots 1 & 2 of Block 1 of   
      Floatplane Subdivision  ...................................................................................... page 39 
 
e.   Nerka Road 95% Design and Teal Lane Extension  .......................................... page 43 

 
9. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
10. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS  

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 52



 

DILLINGHAM PLANNING COMMISSION   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
May 13, 2015 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         

I.   CALL TO ORDER 
The regular meeting of the Dillingham Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Julie Baltar at 5:37 p.m. 
 
II. ROLL CALL (quorum is 4) 
 
Members present:  Public:  

Sabrina Savo, Seat A 
Gregg Marxmiller, Seat C  Bradford Archer, BBAHC 
William Corbett, Seat D   Sabrina Harchetti, BBAHC 
Andy Anderson, Seat E   Nick Wahl 
Julie Baltar, Seat F  
    

Staff in Attendance:  
Jody Seitz, City Planner, Recorder 

 
III. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF April 8, 2015.  
 
MOTION:  Andy Anderson moved and Gregg Marxmiller seconded the motion to 

approve the minutes of April 8, 2015. 
 
VOTE:   Unanimous consent to approve the minutes. 
 
IV.  APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
MOTION:  Andy Anderson moved and Gregg Marxmiller seconded the motion to 

approve the agenda. 
 
VOTE: The agenda was approved unanimously. 
 
V. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Communications to the Planning Commission   
Planner Seitz reported on the invitation to agencies to comment on the 
Nerka Roads subdivision plans. Commission discussed and decided to 
wait to comment until after the June public meeting.  Chair asked if there 
was an agreement with the City to own the streets once the project was 
completed. 
ADOT Kanakanak Road project – there will be a detour over Waskey 
Road for some time as the crews install new culverts in the airport Wye. 
Planner Seitz has approved the road name for a private road access 
easement. Nelson Avenue will replace Ridgeway Drive on road signs and 

Page 3 of 52



the address map, but Ridgeway Drive will remain as a platted right of way 
on Blackie’s Knob subdivision. 

B. Planner Seitz reviewed her report with the Commission.  
C. Citizen’s comments – no Citizens commented. 

 
VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Dental Annex Subdivision – no testimony 
B. Pacer Subdivision Final Plat – no testimony 
C. Six Year Capital Improvement plan update for FY17 – no testimony 
D. Name Change Ridgeway Drive – no testimony 

 
VII.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A. Resolution 2015-06 Recommending Revisions to Title 15 Floodplain 
Management 

 
MOTION:   Andy Anderson moved to adopt and William Corbett seconded the motion 

to approve Resolution 2015-06 Revisions to Title 15 Floodplain 
Management.  

 
DISCUSSION:  
 Concern about definitions of what is considered a dependent use, that the language 

might be too specific, and particularly about restrictions on storage for processing 
plants. 

 Seitz clarified difference between V zone and A zone. 
 No further discussion.  

 
VOTE:  The motion was unanimously approved. 

 
B. Title 18 Land Use 

 
MOTION: William Corbett moved and Gregg Marxmiller approved the motion to 

postpone amendments to Title 18 indefinitely. 
 

DISCUSSION: No discussion. 
 

VOTE:  The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

C. Resolution 2015-13 Rescind 2015-03 and Approve Dental Annex 
Subdivision Preliminary Plat 

 
MOTION: Andy Anderson moved to approve and Gregg Marxmiller seconded the 

motion to rescind Resolution 2015-03 and approve Resolution 2015-13 
approving Dental Annex Subdivision Preliminary Plat 

 

Page 4 of 52



DISCUSSION: Seitz explained that Resolution 2015-03 should be rescinded because it 
put a condition on the landowner which was unnecessary.  The 
landowner was not required to replat their property to remove an 
encroachment on one of their lots. 

 
VOTE:  Motion carries unanimously. 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Resolution 2015-05 Unsigned minutes and resolutions. 
Planner Seitz recommended the commission not approve this.  The City Clerk takes 
the approval from the minutes and staples it with the unsigned minutes.  
The Planning Commission took no action on Resolution 2015-05. 

 
B. Resolution 2015-07 Approving Dental Annex Subdivision Final Plat  

 
MOTION:  Gregg Marxmiller moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to 

approve Resolution 2015-07. 
 

DISCUSSION:   No discussion. Andy Anderson moved the previous question. 
 

VOTE: The vote was unanimous to approve Resolution 2015-07.  
 

C. Resolution 2015-08 Approving Pacer Subdivision Final Plat  
 

MOTION:   Gregg Marxmiller moved to approve and William Corbett seconded the 
motion to approve Resolution 2015-08. 

 
DISCUSSION:  No discussion. Andy Anderson moved the previous question. 
 
VOTE:  The vote was unanimous to approve Resolution 2015-08. 
 

D. Resolution 2015-09 Recommending 2015 CIP Update  
 

MOTION: Andy Anderson moved and Sabrina Savo seconded the motion to approve 
 Resolution 2015-09. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 Seitz explained that there was a revised version for this meeting due to the request 

from Council to include the Dillingham City Schools projects in the CIP. Seitz 
explained the capital projects plan’s purpose, criteria used to score the projects, and 
that the plan the commission adopts lays the groundwork for the day when there will 
be more funding. The projects in the top priority are primarily needed for health and 
safety reasons. Other criteria could be factored in with more funding. She explained 
the overall purpose of the CIP was to direct capital spending and budget for it over 
the long run, that the public process is required by many programs and state law.  

Page 5 of 52



 Question about Tribal Transportation dollars and why Nerka Roads is on the City’s 
plan. Seitz explained that the schools are city facilities.  The idea is to support 
projects that are community goals.   

 Commented that it helps the Tribe get funding for their projects and shows that public 
dollars are being spent on publicly supported projects. 

   
  Andy Anderson moved the previous question. 
  
VOTE:  Resolution 2015-09 was approved unanimously. 

 
E. Resolution 2015-10 Amend DMC 2.68 Speed Limits 

 
MOTION:    Andy Anderson moved and William Corbett seconded the motion to approve 

Resolution 2015-10.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 Seitz explained that the revised version handed out tonight changed the additional 

language to be under part C, which does not require a public hearing for every street 
light the commission approves, instead of B which requires a public hearing for the 
actions in that section.  

 Gregg Marxmiller moved the previous question. 
 
VOTE: The vote was unanimous to approve Resolution 2015-10. 

 
F. Resolution 2015-11 Long Term Encroachment Permit  

for Main St 
 

MOTION: William Corbett moved and Gregg Marxmiller seconded the motion to 
approve Resolution 2015-11. 

 
DISCUSSION:   
 Seitz clarified the conditions for the commission.  
 William Corbett moved the previous question. 
 
VOTE:  Resolution 2015-11 was approved unanimously. 

         
G. Resolution 2015-12 Access to lots on ASLS 2005-51   
 

MOTION: William Corbett moved and Gregg Marxmiller seconded the motion to 
approve Resolution 2012. 

 
DISCUSSION:   
 Seitz displayed a draft plat of Kenny Wren road possible easement and the problem 

of the landlocked parcel Tract B within the ASLS 2005-51. She described the 
potential change requested by Nushagak to make the road safer and provided other 
details about the transaction with the state.  

Page 6 of 52



 Discussion about getting access cleared up. 
 Commented that this could years.  Seitz says hopefully no. 
 Andy Anderson moved the previous question. 

 
VOTE: Resolution 2015-12 was approved unanimously. 

 
X.  CITIZEN’S COMMENTS 
 
All the citizens had departed by this time. 
  
XI. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

 
 Julie – First Sabrina – it’s nice to have you here. 
 Sabrina – I thought I wasn’t going to be here. I had a trip postponed until next week. 
 Andy – I was around when she (Seitz) got started and she quickly became a “born 

planner” from scratch. And you did well. Wish you well. 
 Gregg – Thanks Jody for all her work and for helping me with my position. I 

appreciate the effort she puts into her work and she’ll be missed by me! 
 William – Thank-you – have fun. Enjoy movies, fast food, fast internet.  1 gig per 

second. 
 Julie – We really appreciate all your efforts. A privilege to serve with you and you 

assistance on the planning commission. You did a good job serving the commission. 
 Julie – BBNA is working on a transit project. We don’t know who would manage it 

down here in Dillingham. Aleknagik purchased a van and is discussing routes and 
may ultimately look at acquiring more buses. BBNA is trying to understand the need.  
Transit is big for people that tend to be poor and don’t have the ability to have cars. 
Something on the horizon. 

 Julie -Thank-you Jody and everyone. I thought this would take longer! 
 Sabrina – I read your job description and I’m definitely not going to be applying.  How 

does she do all that? I got my plate full now at BBNA! 
 

 
XI.  ADJOURNMENT 
Adjourned at 6:56 

  
        ______________________________ 
        Julie Baltar, Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Jody Seitz, Recorder 

Page 7 of 52



 

Page 8 of 52



 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham Planning Commission 
Alice Ruby Sabrina Savo, Seat A  
 Brad Archer B 
 Gregg Marxmiller, Seat C 
Manager  William Corbett, Seat D 
Rose Loera  Andy Anderson, Seat E 
 Julie Baltar, Seat F, Chair 
 Vacant, Seat G 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: December 16, 2015 
 
To: Planning Commission 
 
From: Rose Loera, City Manager  
 
Subject: Report to Planning Commission 
 
Planner Position Update: The City continues to recruit to fill the Planner vacancy. For the interim, 
a Request for Proposal for Planner Services has been put out for bid with a closing date of 
December 21, 2015. This contract would remain in place until a candidate can be found to fill the 
vacancy. 
 
Commissioner Terms Due to Expire: Two seats will expire at the end of December.   
Both individuals, William Corbett and Sabrina Savo, were sent an email, December 7, asking if 
they were interested in continuing to serve on the Planning Commission.  This would be for a 
three year term for each seat.  
 
They were asked to file their letter of interest by December 31, 2015, attention Mayor Ruby, in 
care of City Clerk.  The appointments will be made at the January 13 City Council meeting.   
 
Status of Subdivisions in Progress: Pacer, Seven D’s, and Edra Garage subdivisions have all 
been recorded.   
 
Plat Correction: Please note the Preliminary Plat for PC Resolution 2015-17 lists Paul Liedberg as 
the Chairperson of the Planning Commission. This will be changed on the final plat. 
 
Permitting:  

Encroachment Permits:   
 LTE 2015-06 Bury Electrical at Lot 7A Block 2, Spruce Drive ……. Resolution No. 2015-58 
 LTE 2015-07 Span Guy Across Main Street …… Resolution No. 2015-62 
 
These time sensitive items were brought before the City Council for approval without review 
by the Planning Commission. No action needs to be taken. 
 
Land Use Permits:   LUP 2015-05 Construction of Residential Home and Shop/Garage 
    at Lot 7A Block 2, Sundance Subdivision  
 
This permit was approved. No action needs to be taken. 

Page 9 of 52



 

Page 10 of 52



Page 11 of 52



Page 12 of 52



Page 13 of 52



 

Page 14 of 52



Page 15 of 52



Page 16 of 52



Page 17 of 52



Page 18 of 52



Page 19 of 52



Page 20 of 52



 
DILLINGHAM PLANNING COMMISSION 

  
PC RESOLUTION 2015-14 

 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF A LONG TERM ENCROACHMENT PERMIT FOR 
NUSHAGAK COOPERATIVES TO ADJUST HEIGHT OF THE TRANSFORMER AND 
VAULT AT THE CITY DOCK LIFT STATION 

 
WHEREAS, Nushagak Cooperative wishes to adjust height of the transformer and vault 
at the City Dock Lift Station to accommodate fill being brought in during lift station 
renovation; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is no objection to the adjustment as proposed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Dillingham Planning Commission is required to make a 
recommendation to the city council for long term encroachments and for excavation and 
construction in city rights-of-way and city property per DMC 12.08.020 (C) and DMC 
12.08.070;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 
Dillingham, Alaska, recommends the City Council approve Long Term Encroachment 
permit 2015-08 to adjust height of the transformer and vault at the City Dock Lift Station, 
with the following conditions: 
 

 That one form of location information be provided after the installation, whether 
an as-built or GPS coordinates; 

 That the road be returned to its original condition and compaction, 
 That prior to working in the street, at least 48 hours’ notice be given to the City of 

Dillingham Administration, Public Works, and Public Safety departments. 
 
ADOPTED by the Dillingham Planning Commission December 16, 2015. 
 
 
          __________________________________ 
          Julianne E. Baltar, Chair 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
________________________________ 
City Staff 
 
 
            
 

 

 

 

 

Page 21 of 52



 

Page 22 of 52



Page 23 of 52



Page 24 of 52



Page 25 of 52



Page 26 of 52



 
DILLINGHAM PLANNING COMMISSION  

 
PC RESOLUTION 2015-15 

 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF A LONG TERM ENCROACHMENT PERMIT FOR 
NUSHAGAK COOPERATIVES TO BURY A COMMUNICATION CONDUCTOR IN 
ORDER TO REMOVE THE HARBOR SPUR ROAD CROSSING 

 
WHEREAS, Nushagak Cooperative wishes to bury communication conductor in order to 
remove the Harbor Spur Road crossing; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is no objection to the burial as proposed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Dillingham Planning Commission is required to make a 
recommendation to the city council for long term encroachments and for excavation and 
construction in city rights-of-way and city property per DMC 12.08.020 (C) and DMC 
12.08.070;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 
Dillingham, Alaska, recommends the City Council approve Long Term Encroachment 
permit 2015-09 to bury communication conductor in order to remove the Harbor Spur 
Road crossing, with the following conditions: 
 

 That one form of location information be provided after the installation, whether 
an as-built or GPS coordinates; 

 That the road be returned to its original condition and compaction, 
 That prior to working in the street, at least 48 hours’ notice be given to the City of 

Dillingham Administration, Public Works, and Public Safety departments. 
 
ADOPTED by the Dillingham Planning Commission December 16, 2015. 
 
 
          __________________________________ 
          Julianne E. Baltar, Chair 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
________________________________ 
City Staff 
 

Page 27 of 52



 

Page 28 of 52



Page 29 of 52



Page 30 of 52



Page 31 of 52



 

Page 32 of 52



 
 

DILLINGHAM PLANNING COMMISSION  
 

PC RESOLUTION 2015-16 
 

RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF A LONG TERM ENCROACHMENT PERMIT FOR 
NUSHAGAK COOPERATIVES TO INSTALL A STREET LIGHT AT LOT 2B BLOCK 
18 OF THE WHITE SUBDIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, Nushagak Cooperative wishes to install a streetlight at Lot 2B Block 18 of 
white Subdivision; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is no objection to the installation as proposed; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Dillingham Planning Commission is required to make a 
recommendation to the city council for long term encroachments and for excavation and 
construction in city rights-of-way and city property per DMC 12.08.020 (C) and DMC 
12.08.070;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 
Dillingham, Alaska, recommends the City Council approve Long Term Encroachment 
permit 2015-05 to bury communication conductor in order to remove the Harbor Spur 
Road crossing, with the following conditions: 
 

 That one form of location information be provided after the installation, whether 
an as-built or GPS coordinates; 

 That the road be returned to its original condition and compaction, 
 That prior to working in the street, at least 48 hours’ notice be given to the City of 

Dillingham Administration, Public Works, and Public Safety departments. 
 

ADOPTED by the Dillingham Planning Commission December 16, 2015. 
 
 
          __________________________________ 
          Julianne E. Baltar, Chair 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
________________________________ 
City Staff 
 
 

Page 33 of 52



 

Page 34 of 52



Page 35 of 52



Page 36 of 52



Page 37 of 52



Page 38 of 52



 
 

DILLINGHAM PLANNING COMMISSION  
 

PC RESOLUTION 2015-17 
 

RECOMMENDING REPLAT OF LOTS 1 & 2 OF BLOCK 1 OF FLOATPLANE 
SUBDIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, the Dillingham Municipal Code 17.15.010 (A) requires that a recorded 
plat may not be altered or replatted except on petition of the state, the city, a public 
utility, or the owners of a majority of the land affected by the alteration or replat; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Preliminary Platting Application and Preliminary Plat has been received 
from Dillingham Bible Fellowship requesting a replat be granted to vacate the common 
lot line of said property; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of the required public hearing was issued per DMC 17.07.050 
on December 9 to adjacent property owners, and was posted in three public places 
December 11, 2015, five days in advance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Dillingham Planning Commission is required to make a 
recommendation to the City Council for each vacation, alteration, or replat sought per 
DMC 17.15.030; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 
Dillingham, Alaska, recommends the City Council approve the replat of Lots 1 & 2 of 
Block 1 of Floatplane Subdivision. 
 

 
ADOPTED by the Dillingham Planning Commission December 16, 2015. 
 
 
          __________________________________ 
          Julianne E. Baltar, Chair 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
________________________________ 
City Staff 
 
 

Page 39 of 52



 

Page 40 of 52



Page 41 of 52



 

Page 42 of 52



Page 43 of 52



Page 44 of 52



Page 45 of 52



 

Page 46 of 52



Page 47 of 52



Page 48 of 52



Page 49 of 52



Page 50 of 52



Page 51 of 52



Page 52 of 52




